
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, November 10, 2015                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting; October 27, 2015 Joint Study Session with Arts 

Commission; and October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Recreation and Conservation Office Grant for SoCo Park Acquisition (Feser) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding the Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Budget (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Update Presentation (Feser) 
3. Consider Resolution Amending Development, Building Permit, Administrative, and Transportation 

Impact Fees for 2016 (Lyons/Thompson) 
4. Consider an Ordinance Implementing a Vehicle License Fee (Hendrickson) 
5. Consider an Ordinance Setting the Utility Tax Rate for Stormwater, Solid Waste and Cable TV 

(Hendrickson) 
6. Consider Adopting 2016 Legislative Agenda (Bolli) 
7. 2015 Third Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

  
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  November 10, 2015   

 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  OCTOBER 13, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES; OCTOBER 27, 2015 CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 

WITH ARTS COMMISSION MINUTES; AND OCTOBER 27, 2015 CITY 

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

 

EXPLANATION:  

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  

 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the October 13, 2015 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes; October 27, 2015 City Council Study Session with 
Arts Commission Minutes; and October 27, 2015 City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

1 

 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 

Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 

September 8, 2015, at 7:11 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 

Wagner. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 

Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 

Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Pat 

Patterson, Interim Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Principal 

Planner; Shellie Bates Programs Supervisor, Rachel Bahl, Aquatics Supervisor; Angie Feser, Parks 

Planner; Casey Parker, Senior Accountant; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

 Dr. Calvin Watts, Kent School District Superintendent, accepted the October 18-24, 2015 

America’s Safe Schools Week Proclamation. 

 Representative Mark Hargrove was recognized for his ongoing support of the Covington 

community. 

 Green River Coalition President Greg Wingard provided introductory remarks and 

introduced Green River College interns Danielle Kies and Stephen Melanson who provided 

a report on the Covington Community Park project. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

Frank Sutton, 17025 SE Wax Road, Covington, spoke against mandatory yard waste service. 

 

Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke against mandatory garbage and yard 

waste service. 

 

George Pearson, 18623 SE 265th Street, Covington, spoke in favor of mandatory yard waste, 

garbage, and recycling services. 

2 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

2 

 

 

Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington, spoke in favor of mandatory yard waste, 

garbage, and recycling services.  Mrs. Pritchard also asked members of the audience to step outside 

with the side conversations so other audience members could hear the meeting. 

 

Pat Lynch, 17015 SE Wax Road, Covington, spoke against mandatory yard waste service. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  September 8, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes and September 22, 2015 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #33082-33133, including ACH payments and electronic funds 

transfers, in the amount of $719,134.03, dated September 18 2015; Vouchers #33134-33174, 

including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $317,365.72, dated 

October 2, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004206548-1004206560 inclusive, plus 

employee direct deposits in the amount of $166,618.77, dated September 11, 2015; and 

Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004254776-1004254789 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 

#1004254833-1004254833 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of 

$225,420.19, dated September 25, 2015. 

 

C-3. Approve Partial Termination of Easement for Maple Hills. 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1.  Receive Public Testimony and Consider an Ordinance Authorizing the City of Covington’s 

Assumption of the Rights, Powers, Functions, and Obligations of the Covington Transportation 

Benefit District. 

 

City Manager Regan Bolli provided the staff report on this item. 

 

Mayor Harto called for public comments for the Public Hearing. 

 

Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke in favor of this ordinance. 

 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the Public 

Hearing. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 07-15 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ASSUMING 

3 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

3 

 

THE RIGHTS, POWERS, FUNCTIONS, AND OBLIGATIONS OF 

THE COVINGTON TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT; 

REPEALING SECTION 12.125.020 AND AMENDING 

SECTIONS 12.125.030 AND .040 OF THE COVINGTON 

MUNICIPAL CODE TO EFFECT THE SAME; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 07-15, in substantial form as that included in the agenda packet, to eliminate 
the Covington Transportation Benefit District as a separate governmental entity and for the 
City of Covington to assume the rights, powers, functions, and obligations of the Covington 
Transportation Benefit District.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider Ordinance to Include Mandatory Garbage Collection and/or Yard Waste & Recycling. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Wagner recused himself from this item and joined the audience in order to answers 

questions as requested by Councilmember Lanza. 

 

Councilmembers asked questions relating to the solid waste services contract, and Mr. Wagner 

provided responses in his role with Republic Services. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked further questions, and City Attorney Sara Springer 

provided responses. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to 
reconsider the vote on the ordinance relating to universal mandatory solid waste collection 
services (Option No. 1).  Vote:  5-1 (voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, Smith, Scott, Lanza; voting 
no:  Cimaomo).  Motion carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO UNIVERSAL 

MANDATORY SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE IN 

THE CITY OF COVINGTON; AMENDING CHAPTER 8.15 OF 

THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE AND RELATED 

ORDINANCES REGULATING SOLID WASTE; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, SEVERABILITY, 

AND SUMMARY PUBLICATION.  

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 08-15, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, relating to 
universal mandatory solid waste collection services in the City of Covington and amending 
Chapter 8.15 of the Covington Municipal Code to affect the same, with an effective date of 

4 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

4 

 

July 1, 2016.  Vote:  4-2 (voting yes:  Mhoon, Scott, Lanza, and Harto; voting no:  Cimaomo 
and Smith).  Motion carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  Town Center Presentation.   

 

Community Development Director Richard Hart introduced this item, and the consultants from 

Helix Design Group provided a presentation. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and the consultants provided responses. 

 

4.  Consider Funding Sources. 

 

Councilmember Lanza began this discussion and outlined his reasons for requesting to have this 

topic placed on this meeting’s agenda.  Councilmember Lanza also noted his concerns and asked 

questions.  Mayor Harto and staff provided responses. 

 

Councilmember Mhoon added input as to her reasons for requesting to have this topic placed on 

the agenda.  Councilmember Mhoon also asked questions and sought clarification from Finance 

Director Rob Hendrickson who provided responses. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Wagner provided comments and sought clarification, and City Manager Regan 

Bolli provided a response. 

 

Councilmember Cimaomo added input as to his reasons for requesting to have this topic placed on 

the agenda. 

 

Councilmember Lanza further stated his concerns and requested further information on this 

subject. 

 

Other councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses. 

 

Mayor Harto provided a summary of the discussion and indicated this item would be discussed 

further at the Budget Workshop on October 31. 

 

5.  Discuss Items for the 2016 Legislative Agenda. 

 

City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report for this item.   

 

Councilmembers discussed the topics on the draft legislative agenda and provided input to staff 

who will bring this item back for final adoption at an upcoming meeting. 

 

6.  City Manager Presents 2016 Budget Message. 

 

City Manager Regan Bolli presented the 2016 Budget Message. 

5 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

5 

 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
extend the meeting for one hour.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To Consider Real Estate Acquisition Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1) (b) and to Discuss Potential 

Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) From 10:10 to 11:00 p.m. 

 

Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session after which no 

further action was anticipated.   

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:00 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

6 of 129



Unapproved Draft – October 27, 2015 Special Meeting - Study Session with Arts Commission 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
 City Council Special Meeting 

Study Session with Arts Commission 
Tuesday, October 27, 2015 

 

The Special Meeting Study Session with the Arts Commission was called to order in the City 

Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 

27, 2015, at 6:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 

Wagner. 

 

ARTS COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 

Lesli Cohan, Gini Cook (arrived @ 6:05 p.m.), Jennifer Harjehausen, Paul Selland (arrived @ 6:20 

p.m.), and Ed White. 

 

ARTS COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 

Tyler Bykonen and Leslie Spero. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Pat Patterson, Interim Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City 

Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Margaret Harto called the special meeting study session to order. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Smith moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1. Sustaining Public Art in Covington. 

 

Vice Chair Ed White gave a PowerPoint presentation on this item.  Interim Parks & Recreation 

Director Pat Patterson provided additional information. 

 

Councilmembers asked questions, and discussed this item with commissioners.  Councilmembers 

also shared ideas with the commission. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

7 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 27, 2015 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 

Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 

27, 2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 

Wagner. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 

Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 

Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Pat Patterson, 

Interim Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Rachel Bahl, Aquatics 

Supervisor; Ann Mueller, Senior Planner; Casey Parker, Senior Accountant; and Sharon Scott, City 

Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Agenda with the addition of an Executive Session.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) from 7:10 to 7:35 p.m. 

 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for fifteen minutes 

and the regular meeting would reconvene at 7:25 p.m. 

 

At 7:25 p.m. it was announced that the Executive Session would continue for an additional five 

minutes. 

 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 City Manager Regan Bolli provided a presentation on the city trip to Tatsuno, Japan.  

Councilmember Scott and City Clerk Sharon Scott provided additional information. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

 

8 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 2 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 12, 2015 Transportation Benefit District Special Meeting Minutes and 

October 13, 2015 City Council Special Meeting Study Session Minutes. 

 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #33175-33235, including ACH payments and electronic fund 

transfers, in the amount of $431,201.48, dated October 16, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks 

#1004310095-1004310108 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of 

$168,580.09, dated October 9, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004374848-

1004374859 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004374876-1004374876 inclusive, plus 

employee direct deposits in the amount of $169,135.26, dated October 23, 2015. 

 

C-3. Approve Interlocal Agreement with Kent Regional Fire Authority for Fire Marshal Services. 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Human Services Commission – October 8 meeting:  no report. 

 

Parks & Recreation Commission – no report; October 21 meeting was canceled. 

 

Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the October 

1 meeting and public hearing.  The October 15 meeting was canceled. 

 

Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the October 8 meeting. 

 

Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee – Chair Jennifer Harjehausen reported on 

the September 23 meeting and the October 10 parks tour. 

 

Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the September 24 meeting.  

The October 22 meeting was canceled. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Public Testimony and Consider Resolution on Petition Regarding Hawk Property 

Annexation. 

 

Senior Planner Ann Mueller gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Mayor Harto called for public comments for this public hearing item. 

 

Delores Hancock, 16456 SE 240th Street, Kent, spoke in opposition to the Hawk project.  Ms. 

Hancock express her concerns and frustration over the increasing volume of traffic on 240th Street 

and requested Highway 18 overpass modification. 

 

9 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 3 

Brenda Hanson, 20610 SE 250th Street, Maple Valley, spoke about her concerns regarding her 

property and the proposed annexation. 

 

Sam Pace, 29839 154th Avenue SE, unincorporated King County, representing Seattle-King 
County Realtors Association, spoke in support of the annexation. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for this public 

hearing item. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-11 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING 

FOR THE NOTICE OF INTENT TO ANNEX CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE “HAWK PROPERTY 

ANNEXATION”, AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE OF 

INTENT BE FILED WITH THE KING COUNTY BOUNDARY 

REVIEW BOARD.  

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to pass Resolution No. 15-11, in substantial form as that included in the agenda packet, to 
accept the Hawk Property 60 percent Annexation Petition with a designation of the 
Annexation Area as part of the Hawk Property Subarea in the Comprehensive Plan’s Future 
Land Use Map and zoned as R-6 on the city’s zoning map, and to direct staff to submit the 
Notice of Intent to the King County Boundary Review Board for further review.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
2.  Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending Interim Recreational Marijuana 

Regulations. 

 

Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and City Attorney Sara 

Springer provided responses. 

 

Mayor Harto called for public comments for this public hearing item. 

 

Colleen O’Rourke, P.O. Box 6023, Kent 98064, asked Council to consider reducing the setbacks 

from the library to 500 feet when adopting the permanent regulations.  Ms. O’Rourke offered her 

appreciation of the police chief, mayor, councilmembers, and Mr. Hart for meeting with her in 

person and responding to her telephone calls regarding this issue. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for this public 

hearing item. 

 

10 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO RENEW THE 

PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED INTERIM ZONING REGULATIONS 

FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCTION, 

PROCESSING, AND RETAIL USES FOR SIX MONTHS; 

PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE RENEWAL; 

ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND 

ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to adopt 
Ordinance No. 09-15, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, to renew the 
city’s interim zoning regulations for recreational marijuana production, processing, and 
retail uses for an additional six months.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Revenues and Possible 

Increase in Property Tax Levy (First of Three Public Hearings). 

 

Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson provided responses. 

 

Mayor Harto called for public comments for this public hearing item. 

 
Sam Pace, 29839 154th Avenue SE, unincorporated King County, speaking on behalf of 

himself, clarified the dollar amount for medium home prices he spoke about previously and 

provided comments on property taxes. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for this public 

hearing item. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
4.  Consider Ordinance Designating Civic Center Drug Free Zones. 

 

Police Chief Andy McCurdy gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Chief McCurdy provided 

responses. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 10-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, DESIGNATING CIVIC CENTER 

11 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 5 

DRUG FREE ZONES; AMENDING CHAPTER 9.45, CRIMINAL 

CODE, OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE TO 

ESTABLISH THE SAME; ESTABLISHING SEVERABILITY AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS. 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 10-15, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, designating 
civic center drug free zones within the City of Covington.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  

 
5.  Consider Ordinance Pertaining to School Impact Fees. 

 

City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 11-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, PERTAINING TO SCHOOL 

IMPACT FEES, REPEALING CHAPTER 18.120 OF THE 

COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED SCHOOL 

IMPACT FEES; TERMINATING THE INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT WITH KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT REGARDING 

THE SAME; ESTABLISHING SEVERABILITY; DECLARING 

AN EMERGENCY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded 
to pass Ordinance No. 11-15, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, 
relating to school impact fees, repealing Chapter 18.120 of the Covington Municipal Code, 
and terminating the Interlocal agreement with Kent School District regarding the same.  
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

Sam Pace, 29839 154th Avenue SE, unincorporated King County, spoke in support of Council’s 

action repealing Chapter 18.120 of the Covington Municipal Code, and terminating the Interlocal 

agreement with Kent School District. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

12 of 129



Unapproved Draft–October 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  November 10, 2015 

 

 

 6 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To review the performance of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) from 9:40 to 

9:55 p.m. 

 

Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for approximately 

fifteen minutes after which no further action was anticipated. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 

 

Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

13 of 129



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  November 10, 2015 

 

SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  

 

RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers #33236-33236 in the amount of $4,689.02, dated October 22, 

2015; Vouchers #33237-33297, including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the 

amount of $1,119,841.65, dated October 30, 2015; electronic fund transfer in the amount of 

$96.76, dated November 2, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004435152-1004435166 

inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $167,142.65, dated November 6, 

2015. 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

 

EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #33236-33236 in the amount of 
$4,689.02, dated October 22, 2015; Vouchers #33237-33297, including ACH 
payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $1,119,841.65, 
dated October 30, 2015; electronic fund transfer in the amount of $96.76, 
dated November 2, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004435152-
1004435166 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of 
$167,142.65, dated November 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

 

14 of 129



15 of 129



16 of 129



17 of 129



18 of 129



19 of 129



20 of 129



21 of 129



22 of 129



23 of 129



24 of 129



25 of 129



26 of 129



27 of 129



28 of 129



29 of 129



30 of 129



31 of 129



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015  

 
SUBJECT:  RCO GRANT CONTRACT – SOCO PARCEL ACQUISITION  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pat Patterson, Interim Parks and Recreation Director 

                                         Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. RCO Project Agreement, Project #14-1623A 

 

PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The city has prioritized the purchase of three parcels on Wax Road to form SoCo Park, both by 

adopting it as the third highest project in the Parks Capital Improvement Program (CIP) in April 

of 2014 and again within the 2015 city’s capital budget. In addition, the council approved a 

resolution authorizing this grant application in May of 2014. The first parcel identified for 

acquisition is known as the Allmand property. In 2014 the city submitted an application to the 

Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) in the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program 

Local Parks grant category and was successfully awarded the grant in mid-2015. This RCO grant 

for $558,915, combined with additional funding through two King County Conservation Funds 

(CFT) grants totaling $650,000, provide a majority of the funding necessary for the purchase.   

 

This proposed agreement secures the RCO funding and commits the city to acquire this parcel 

and make improvements to provide public access for the first of three properties needed to create 

SoCo Park.  

 

ALTERNATIVES:  Not approve agreement and decline grant funding.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

The total estimated cost of acquisition and public access for this parcel is $1,522,000 with the 

purchase slated for early 2016. There are some costs associated with the acquisition and required 

public access not covered by either grant for which the city is responsible. The purchase price is 

currently being negotiated so the city’s funding portion is an approximation. The city’s amount is 

estimated to be in the range of $275,000 - $315,000 and will be paid for through unanticipated 

REET revenues received in 2015. Additionally, $60,000 will come from King County Parks 

Levy program.   

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance        Resolution      X   Motion         Other 

 

Council member ___________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between the 
City of Covington and Recreation and Conservation Office, in substantial 
form as attached hereto, to administer grant funding for acquisition of one 
parcel of the City’s SoCo Park. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director, Parks & Recreation Director 

32 of 129



ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 129



34 of 129



35 of 129



36 of 129



37 of 129



38 of 129



39 of 129



40 of 129



41 of 129



42 of 129



43 of 129



44 of 129



45 of 129



46 of 129



47 of 129



48 of 129



49 of 129



50 of 129



51 of 129



52 of 129



53 of 129



54 of 129



55 of 129



56 of 129



57 of 129



58 of 129



 Agenda Item 1 
  Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015 

 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE PUBLIC 

REGARDING PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET [FIRST OF TWO 
PUBLIC HEARINGS]. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND STAFF: PLEASE REMEMBER TO BRING YOUR 
PRELIMINARY 2016 BUDGET WORKBOOK BINDERS TO THE MEETING. 

THANK YOU! 
 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

EXPLANATION:   

This is the first public hearing to receive testimony from the public on the 2016 proposed 

operating and capital budget.  This hearing is required to be held by RCW 35.33.057. 

 

It is the policy of the city to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion     X     Other 

 

 
 

59 of 129



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015  

 
SUBJECT:  PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE PLAN UPDATE BRIEFING  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pat Patterson, Interim Parks and Recreation Director 

                                         Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. None. 

 

PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The periodic update to the Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan began early this year 

with a heavy emphasis of public outreach opportunities including open houses, mail and online 

surveys, an interactive website, direct emailing to more than 5,000 program participants, 

Covington Days display and stakeholder meetings. Highlights of the findings resulting from the 

public process will be presented by the project’s consultant, Steve Duh of Conservation Technix.    

 

Due to growth in the city’s parks system and recreation programming, the plan has expanded 

from the 2010 version and now includes four main components – parks, recreation programs and 

facilities, trails and linkages and green infrastructure. With the city’s comprehensive plan update 

occurring concurrently, there is special emphasis in coordinating work with Community 

Development to align the comp plan parks element and PROS plan update as well.  

 

The draft plan update was presented to and reviewed by the Parks and Recreation Commission 

on September 16th and the Planning Commission on October 1st. Input from these reviews and 

revisions from city staff will be combined with feedback from this presentation and will be 

incorporated to develop the final draft. This final draft will again be reviewed by the Parks and 

Recreation Commission in December and then presented to Council in January for review, 

followed by Council adoption slated for February.       

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. None.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

There is no fiscal impact related to this briefing of the PROS Plan update process and 

preliminary findings. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance        Resolution          Motion    X     Other 

 

NO ACTION NECESSARY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Parks and Recreation Director 

60 of 129



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT, BUILDING 

PERMIT, ADMINISTRATIVE, AND TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR 

2016. 

 

RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution adopting the 2016 Fee Resolution - 

a. Exhibit A Proposed 2016 Development, Building Permit, Administrative, and 

Transportation Impact Fees Tables 

 

PREPARED BY:  Kelly Thompson, Permit Center Coordinator 

 

EXPLANATION: 

Adjustments to the development and permit fees, administrative fees, and transportation impact 

fees have historically been adjusted with the Consumer Price Index of Seattle-Tacoma (CPI-W), 

based on June to June of the previous year.  The CPI from June 2014- June 2015 was 1.67%.  

 

The attached fee resolution documents account for an increase to only the hourly rate based on 

the CPI of 1.67%. Staff continues to build on the work from the 2008 Fee Study and staff time-

tracking efforts to identify the actual costs to perform the review and inspection services. Due to 

the implementation of valuation tables in 2015 and strong residential growth, staff recommends 

no increase to the majority of fees as staff time is adequately covered by the current fees.   

 

In addition, staff is recommending the following specific modifications to the development fees.  

 
Specifically Adjusted Development Fees 
1. The Subarea Plan – Planned Action Ordinance fee has added an hourly fee for review that 

exceeds the 15 hour base fee of $2116.   

 

2. The Zoning Map Amendment/Re-zone fee has been added which includes a $500 non-

refundable docketing fee. The fee of $3481 is the approximate equivalent of 24 hours staff 

time.  

 

3. School Impact Fees were repealed by City Council Ordinance No. 11-15 on October 27, 

2015. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not implement the standard inflation rate of 1.67% to the fees. 

2. Implement the standard inflation rate of 1.67% to all fees. 

3. Direct staff to make any other changes. 

 

61 of 129



 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

The fees that have been adjusted upward by the standard inflation factor and the associated fiscal 

impacts will vary based on the application type. The proposed individual fee changes as outlined 

above should have minimal cumulative fiscal impact on the overall development services budget.     

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X    Resolution        Motion      Other 

 

Council member _______________ moves, council member ______________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution amending the development, building permit, 
administrative, and transportation impact fees for 2016, as proposed.   
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director 

  Finance Director 

  City Manager 

  City Attorney 

62 of 129



 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
THE DEVELOPMENT AND PERMIT FEES, 
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES, AND TRANSPORTATION 
IMPACT FEES FOR 2016. 

 
 

WHEREAS, certain sections of the Covington Municipal Code authorize the city to 

charge a fee for services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council has established a 100% cost recovery policy for land use, 

development, and building permits; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to maintain administrative fees for certain products and 

services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to maintain transportation impact fees to fund capital 

improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to modify the fee resolution to amend specific fees to 

reflect the actual time and cost of providing these services and to make other minor changes to 

the fee resolution; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to apply a 1.67% cost of living adjustment to the 2016 

development and permit fees, administrative fees, and transportation impact fees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 1.67% cost of living adjustment is based on the CPI.-W Seattle-Tacoma 

June to June Index published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the period 2014-2015;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Adoption of Fees.  Effective January 1, 2016, the city’s development and 

permit fees, administrative fees,  and transportation impact fees are hereby amended and adopted 

in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit “A” incorporated fully herein by this reference as if 

fully set forth. 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

63 of 129



 

Section 2.  Fee Waiver.  The city manager shall have the right to waive a fee if deemed in 

the best interest of the city. 

 

Adopted in open and regular session on this 10th day of November 2015. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

ATTESTED:      MAYOR MARGARET HARTO 

 

________________________ 

Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

__________________________________ 

Sara Springer, City Attorney 

64 of 129



DEVELOPMENT FEES Page

I.  Development Fees 3

A. Integrated Traffic Concurrency Modeling and Reports ** 3

B. Pre-Application Conference 3

C. Residential Land Development 3

D. Commercial Development 4

E. Boundary Line Adjustment 4

F. Environmental Review 4

G. Parking Demand / Trip Reduction 5

H. Engineering Review 5

I. Clearing and Grading 6

J. Construction Inspection 7

K. Re-inspections and Missed Appointments 7

L. Latecomers' Agreements 7

M. Shoreline Management Fees 8

N. Administrative Fees 8

O. Consultant Pass Through Fees 9

** Integrated Traffic Concurrency Modeling and Report Fee SCHEDULE A 10

II.  Zoning and Land Use Fees 12

A. Zoning Fees 12

B. Conditional Use Permits 12

C. Temporary Use / Re-Use of a Facility 12

D. Zoning Variance / Downtown Departures / Appeals 13

E. Sign Permits 13

F. Wireless Communications Facilities 13

G. Multifamily Tax Exemption Fees 13

H. Other Services 13

III. Right-of-Way Fees 14

IV. Building Fees 15

A. Building Code Fees 15

B. Mechanical Permit Fees 16

C. Plumbing Permit Fees 17

V. Fire Fees 18

A. Fire Permit Fee Table 18

B. Fire Code Construction Permit 18

C. Building and Land Use Plan Review 19

D. Annual Fire Code Enforcement Inspection 19

E. Fireworks 19

F. Other 19

VI. Technology Management Fee 20

2016 CITY OF COVINGTON FEE NOTEBOOK
TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXHIBIT A

65 of 129



ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 21

A. Business Licenses 21

B. City Clerk's Office 21

C. Finance Department 21

D. Miscellaneous Fees 21

IMPACT FEES / OTHER

A. Traffic Impact Fees (TIF) 22

B. Park Impact Fees 29

C. Fee-in-Lieu of Recreation Space 30

D. Storm and Surface Water Service Charges 32

66 of 129



67 of 129



68 of 129



69 of 129



70 of 129



71 of 129



72 of 129



73 of 129



74 of 129



75 of 129



76 of 129



77 of 129



78 of 129



79 of 129



80 of 129



81 of 129



82 of 129



83 of 129



84 of 129



85 of 129



86 of 129



87 of 129



88 of 129



89 of 129



90 of 129



91 of 129



92 of 129



93 of 129



94 of 129



95 of 129



96 of 129



97 of 129



98 of 129



99 of 129



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015  

 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE TO IMPLEMENT A VEHICLE LICENSE FEE 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed ordinance 

 

PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director  

 

EXPLANATION: 

When Initiative 695 was approved by voters in 1999, cities across the state felt the hit to their 

street funds. The Motor Vehicle Excise Tax (MVET) was eliminated and a source of revenue 

that supported street maintenance and capital was wiped out. City street funds have suffered ever 

since.  

 

Today, most cities opt to transfer funds from their general fund to  support streets. While that 

helps in the short-term, it takes away services from the general fund and leaves streets beholden 

to the general fund every budget year to survive. Cities have begun to be more creative in finding 

ways to support streets and the state has offered additional tools for cities to implement.   

 

One of those tools was the Transportation Benefit District (TBD) which came with myriad 

funding sources (both voted and non-voted) such as sales tax and VLFs. The city created a TBD 

in February 2013. The city presented two opportunities for the local electorate to increase sales 

tax by 0.2% to fund street maintenance and capital. Both propositions failed.    

 

With the passage of the 2015 transportation revenue package, cities are allowed to merge the 

TBD with the city and keep the revenue options that came with the TBD. The council did that on 

October 13, 2015. 

 

During 2015, the council has been presented revenue options to support the street fund. The most 

recent presentation came at the Oct. 31 budget workshop. Council was shown the effect on the 

street fund fund balance with general fund support withdrawn. In effect, the street fund falls 

below their 15% fund balance threshold at the end of 2016 and becomes completely insolvent in 

2017. 

 

One of the city manager’s budget strategies outlined in his 2016 budget message is to find a 

dedicated revenue source for the street fund. Currently the VLF satisfies the requirements for a 

dedicated revenue source since it is restricted for transportation use only.   

 

The VLF structure was changed during the 2015 legislative session. The non-voted $20 fee can 

be raised up to $40 after two years and up to $50 after another two years. Anything less than $20 

will not be eligible for the $40 increase until it reaches the $20 level.  

 

100 of 129



 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

VLFs at a $20 level would bring in approximately $280,000 annually. At this level the fund will 

be solvent through 2017. In addition, this allows council to consider an increase to $40 in two 

years or to sunset the VLF at any time if the voters approve a ballot measure increasing the sales 

tax.   

  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance       Resolution         Motion         Other 

 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance to implement a $______ vehicle license fee. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney. 

 

101 of 129



ORDINANCE NO. 12-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHING AN 
ANNUAL VEHICLE LICENSE FEE; ESTABLISHING 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 36.73 RCW enables cities and counties to create transportation 

benefit districts to finance and carry out transportation improvements necessitated by economic 

development and to improve the performance of transportation systems; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington (the “City Council”) approved 

Ordinance No. 02-13 on April 9, 2013, establishing the Covington Transportation Benefit District 

(the “District”), pursuant to Chapter 36.73 RCW, for the purpose of funding transportation 

maintenance and improvement projects that are consistent with existing state, regional, and local 

transportation plans and necessitated by existing or reasonably foreseeable congestion levels (the 

“TBD Projects”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 07-15 on October 13, 2015, 

wherein the City Council assumed governing control of the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.73.065 authorizes a transportation benefit district to initially 

impose, by majority vote, a twenty dollar ($20.00) annual vehicle license fee as authorized in RCW 

82.80.140; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 82.80.140, the new vehicle license fee may not be 

collected until six (6) months after approval of this action by the council; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the city council finds it to be in the best interest of the city and the District to 

establish an annual vehicle license fee in the amount of twenty dollars ($20.00) for the purpose of 

preserving, maintaining, operating, constructing, or reconstructing the transportation infrastructure 

of the District and funding transportation improvements within the District that are consistent with 

the TBD Projects;   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Annual Vehicle License Fee Established. An annual vehicle license fee of 

twenty dollars ($20.00) is hereby established. Consistent with RCW 36.73.065(4)(a)(i), as written 

or hereafter amended, to be collected by the Washington Department of Licensing on qualifying 

vehicles as set forth in RCW 82.80.140, as written or hereafter amended. 

 

Section 2. Revenue Restrictions. The revenues received from the twenty dollar ($20.00) 

vehicle license fee shall only be expended on TBD Projects approved by the city council pursuant 

to Ordinance No. 02-13 and state law. 

ATTACHMENT 1

102 of 129



 

Section 3. Vehicle License Fee Collection Effective Date. The annual vehicle license fee 

shall take effect for notices mailed in 2016 for vehicle license renewals due on or after May ____, 

2016, or as soon thereafter as the Washington Department of Licensing is reasonably able to 

incorporate collection of the $20.00 fee; but in no event shall the vehicle license fee be collected 

sooner than one hundred and eighty (180) days after approval of this ordinance, pursuant to RCW 

36.73.065 and RCW 82.80.140(4). The vehicle license fee shall be collected during the term of the 

existence of the District and shall cease to be collected upon dissolution of the District. 
 

Section 4. Notice to Department of Licensing. The City Council directs the City Clerk to 

notify the Washington Department of Licensing (DOL) of the vehicle license fee established in 

Section 1 of this ordinance and to request that DOL take all steps necessary to implement collection 

of this fee in accordance with RCW 82.80.140.  

 

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance shall be declared by any court 

of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, then such provision shall be null and void and shall be 

separable from the remaining provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of the other 

provisions, or of the imposition or collection of the tax authorized herein.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  A summary of this ordinance shall be published in the official 

newspaper of the City.  This ordinance shall be effective five (5) days after its passage and 

publication. 

  

Section 7.  Corrections by City Clerk.  Upon approval of the City Attorney, the City 

Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of 

clerical errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or 

section/subsection numbering. 

 

 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THIS 10th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2015. 

 

_____________________________  

Margaret Harto, Mayor  

 

 

ATTESTED:       PUBLISHED:  11-20-2015 

        EFFECTIVE:   11-25-2015   

______________________________ 

Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Sara Springer, City Attorney 

103 of 129



Agenda Item 5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: November 10, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE TO SET THE UTILITY TAX RATE FOR _____ 

PERCENT FOR STORM WATER, SOLID WASTE AND CABLE TV.  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

                                          

ATTACHMENT:   

1. Draft ordinance 

 

PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

EXPLANATION: 

At the October 31, 2015 budget workshop, council requested that staff bring back information 

discussing the options for increasing the utility tax rate for those utilities for which rates can be 

raised above the 6% limit councilmanically. Those utilities would be Solid Waste, Storm Water, 

and Cable TV.  

 

Since utility taxes are considered unrestricted, they may be used to pay for any public purpose the 

council deems necessary. A portion of the discussion revolved around perhaps establishing a 

building fund for the Town Center.  

 

The city currently collects 6% on each of the listed utilities in the table below. The table 

represents what an additional 1% would bring in over and above the existing 6% and is based on 

the 2016 budget.  

 

Utility 1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 
Solid Waste 28,667 57,334 86,001 114,668 143,335 172,002 

SWM1 19,512 39,024 58,536 78,048 97,560 117,072 

Cable TV2 51,334 102,668 154,002 205,336 256,670 308,004 

  

ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Do not adopt the ordinance and provide direction to staff. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Discussed above. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution          Motion          Other 

 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt an ordinance to set the utility tax rate at _____ percent for 
the following utilities: _____________, _________________, _____________. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, and Finance Director. 

                                                 
1 While SWM absorbs any rate increase thereby reducing its revenue, the tax that is moved into the general fund 

becomes unrestricted and can be used for any public purpose. 
2 May not be “unduly discriminatory” (i.e. must be imposed at the same or similar rate as is imposed on other 

utilities) 

104 of 129



ORDINANCE NO. 13-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 3.70.040, 
OCCUPATIONS SUBJECT TO TAX, INCREASING THE TAX 
ON THE GROSS INCOME OF SOLID WASTE, CABLE 
TELEVISION, AND SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 
PROVIDERS OPERATING WITHIN THE CITY; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS.  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Covington (“City”) is classified as a non-charter code city under 

title 35A RCW; and 

 

 WHEREAS, RCW 35A.82.020 authorizes a code city to impose excises taxes for 

regulation or revenue on businesses doing business within their boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the above authority, code cities are authorized to impose taxes 

upon gross revenues earned by utility and service providers within their jurisdictional boundaries; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, in November 2007 the City Council of the City of Covington (“City Council”) 

passed Ordinance No. 16-07, enacting a utility tax upon gross revenues derived from certain utility 

service providers operating within the City, including solid waste and cable television, which 

utility tax is codified at Chapter 3.70 of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC); and 

 

 WHEREAS, in May 2012, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 08-12 to include surface 

water management service providers as an occupation for which utility tax is collected, which 

utility tax is codified at CMC 3.70.040; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that an increase the tax rate upon gross 

income derived from solid waste, cable television, and surface water management, service 

operators to ___ percent (__%) is necessary to bridge the financial gap between decreasing 

revenues and increasing demands for city services, including, but not limited to, public safety and 

the maintenance of streets and pedestrian walkways; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1.  CMC 3.70.040 Amended. The following amendment shall be made to CMC 

3.70.040: 

 

3.70.040 Occupations subject to tax – Amount.  
There is levied upon and shall be collected from a person engaged in or 

carrying on a light and power business, telephone business, solid waste 

collection business, gas distribution business, surface water management 

services, or cable television services in the City of Covington a tax equal to 

ATTACHMENT 1

105 of 129



six percent of the total gross income from such business in the City during 

the period for which the tax is due.  

 

(1) Light and Power (Electricity). There is levied upon and shall be collected 

from every person engaged or carrying on the sale, delivery, or distribution 

of a light and power business in the City of Covington a tax equal to six 

percent (6%) of the total gross income derived from the operation of such 

business in the City during the period for which the tax is due. 

 

(2) Telephone. There is levied upon and shall be collected from every 

person engaged in or carrying on a telephone business in the City of 

Covington a tax equal to six percent (6%) of the total gross income derived 

from the operation of such business in the City during the period for which 

the tax is due.  

 

(3) Gas. There is levied upon and shall be collected from every person 

engaged in or carrying on a gas distribution business in the City of 

Covington a tax equal to six percent (6%) of the total gross income derived 

from the operation of such business in the City during the period for which 

the tax is due.  

 

(4) Solid Waste. There is levied upon and shall be collected from every 

person engaged in or carrying on a solid waste collection service in the City 

of Covington a tax equal to      percent (  %) of the total gross income derived 

from the operation of such business in the City during the period for which 

the tax is due.  

 

(5) Cable Television. There is levied upon and shall be collected from every 

person engaged in or carrying on a cable television service in the City of 

Covington a tax equal to      percent (  %) of the total gross income derived 

from the operation of such business in the City during the period for which 

the tax is due.  

 

(6) Surface Water Management. There is levied upon and shall be collected 

from every person engaged in or carrying on a surface water management 

service in the City of Covington a tax equal to      percent (  %) of the total 

gross income derived from the operation of such business in the City during 

the period for which the tax is due.  

 

Section 2. Referendum Procedure. A referendum petition to repeal this ordinance may 

be filed with the City Clerk within seven (7) days of passage of this ordinance. Within ten (10) 

days of such filing, the City Clerk shall confer with the petitioner concerning the form and style 

of the petition, issue an identification number for the petition, and secure an accurate, concise, 

and positive ballot title from the designated local official. The petitioner shall have thirty (30) 

days in which to secure the signatures of not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the registered 

voters of the city, as of the last municipal general election, upon petition forms that contain the 

ballot title and the full text of the measure to be referred. The City Clerk shall verify the 

sufficiency of the signatures on the petition and, if sufficient valid signatures are properly 

submitted, shall certify the referendum measure to the next election ballot within the city or at a 

106 of 129



107 of 129



Agenda Item 6 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: November 10, 2015 

 

 

 

SUBJECT:  2016 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Possible 2016 Legislative Priorities  

2. Possible 2016 Legislative Policy Document  

 

PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

  

EXPLANATION:  

On October 13, 2015 the city council reviewed possible legislative items and gave 

recommendations to staff.  Since then staff has met with the city’s lobbyist and further refined our 

possible 2016 legislative agenda.  A formatting change that we are proposing this year is to adopt 

a smaller than usual agenda with only four items on it.  This will give targeted direction to our 

lobbyist on how to proceed and indicate the priority of these items to our legislators.  In addition 

to the agenda, we are recommending a policy document that states other items of importance that 

we will spend less time on or simply monitor throughout the legislative session.   

 

Following approval of our 2016 Legislative Agenda and Policy Document the Mayor, Mayor Pro 

Tem, and staff will present our 2016 Legislative Agenda to our 47th District Legislators.   

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  Ordinance             Resolution      X     Motion        X     Other  

 

Council may take action at this time or provide additional feedback and direction to staff.   

 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt the 2016 Legislative Agenda. 

 

REVIEWED BY:  Management Team  

 
 
 

108 of 129



  Attachment 1 

 
 
 
 

City of Covington  
2016 Legislative Priorities 

 

Recognizing that the 2016 Legislative Session is a short 60-day session, focused on making amendments to the 2015-

17 budgets, the city has adopted a narrow list of legislative priorities: 

 

 Transportation Funding 
The City of Covington is thankful for the approval of the Connecting Washington funding package, and the 

allocation of funds for widening S.R. 516 between Jenkins Creek and 185th and the Covington Connector. The 

City will monitor the implementation of the Connecting Washington package to ensure timely and efficient 

delivery of both of these projects. Additionally, the City of Covington: 

o Supports moving the funding allocations to the Covington Connector to start construction sooner and 

will work with community interests to advance this request in the 2016 legislative session. 
o Will collaboratively work with Maple Valley and Black Diamond to continue lobbying for the 

widening of SR 516 from 185th to Four Corners.   

 

 Higher Education Needs Assessment 
Seek funding for a higher education needs assessment in Covington. The City previously sought funding for a 

higher education needs assessment; however, the assessment was determined as not needed because Eastern 

Washington University and Green River Community College agreed to conduct a study with existing 

resources.  Unfortunately, Eastern Washington University is no longer interested in pursuing a needs 

assessment.  Covington now seeks funding to complete an assessment.  

 Cost Savings 
The City of Covington will work with the Association of Washington Cities to advance legislation that brings 

cost savings to the city, including public records reform. Additionally, the city will explore legislation that 

allows public meeting recordings to serve as the official, certified minutes of the public meeting.   

 Restrictions on Sister City Expenses  
The City of Covington will work with a coalition of cities to seek clarification from the legislature on a 

funding solution for sister city activities.  Current law prevents cities from spending public funds on hosting 

sister cities or the giving of relevant gifts to visiting dignitaries.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109 of 129



  Attachment 2 
 

 

2016 Legislative Policy Document     

In addition to the City’s 2016 adopted legislative priorities, the city has adopted the following policies. The 

policy document provides direction to city staff and the city lobbyist. These are issues that the city will 

monitor and support along with AWC and other stakeholders, but are secondary to the 2016 legislative 

priorities of the City.  
 

 Transportation: 
o Street Grant Policies – The City will explore and support legislative proposals to create new grant 

programs and/or amend existing grant programs to prioritize streets with high average daily traffic 

flow counts or state routes through city centers.  

o Councilmanic authority - The City supports additional revenue tools that provide councilmanic 

authority to fund local transportation.  

o I-90 and State Highway 18 Improvements - Collaboratively work with applicable jurisdictions to 

lobby for the widening of I-90 & Highway 18 in the next transportation package.  

 

 Property Tax: The city supports lifting the 1% property tax ceiling to allow city revenues to increase with 

inflation/increasing costs.  

 

 AWC & SCA Legislative Programs:  Support the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) and Sound 

Cities Association (SCA) legislative programs.  Support other local government professional associations’ 

legislative programs when consistent with the aforementioned programs. 

 Economic Development Funding:  Support constitutional amendments and/or legislation to create pure tax 

increment financing.  Support funding for the Local Infrastructure Financing Tool (LIFT) and Local 

Revitalization Financing (LRF) programs.  Support efforts to make LIFT and LRF simpler, more flexible, and 

user-friendly. 

 Joint Legislative Agenda:  The cities of Covington, Maple Valley, and Black Diamond will continue to 

advocate jointly for federal and state funding for State Route 169 and State Route 516 improvements and for 

transit alternatives in the three rapidly growing communities.  

 Unfunded Mandates: Oppose unfunded and under-funded mandates on local government.  Support funding 

for existing mandates including comprehensive plan updates, Shoreline Management Act updates and National 

Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) requirements. 

 Local Control: The City of Covington supports legislation that provides greater local control to city 

regulatory issues, particularly around fireworks, marijuana lounges, liquor establishments, etc.  
 

 Affordable Housing Tools: The City supports additional local option funding tools for affordable housing, 

including councilmanic authority for an additional .25% REET to make investments in affordable housing.  
 

 Parks: 
o Recreational Immunity:  The City supports amending the recreational immunity statute so that cities 

retain immunity on trails.   

o RCO WWRP Re-Evaluation: The city will monitor proposed statutory revisions to RCO Washington 

Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP), which could significantly impact our park and trails 

funding grant opportunities. 

 

 Body Cameras: The city supports a legislative amendment to the Public Records Act that allows for the 

effective use of police body cameras, and balances the interests of officer accountability, transparency, and 

privacy.  

 

110 of 129



Agenda Item 7  
 Covington City Council Meeting  

 Date: November 10, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  2015 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2015 Third Quarter Report 

2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 

3. Major Revenue Review 

4. Investment Listing 

 

PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

EXPLANATION: 

It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.33.140) to provide financial 

reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

None. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance            Resolution _____Motion       X   Other 

 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

111 of 129



 

 

 U.S. real GDP growth for the 3rd quarter was revised up from 3.7% to 
3.9% at an annual rate.  

 U.S. employment expanded by a disappointing 142,000 net new jobs 
in September, while July and August employment were revised 
downward by 59,000. 

 U.S. light vehicle sales hit their highest level since July 2005.  

 U.S. manufacturing activity remains weak. 

 Washington employment continues to grow at a solid rate but man-
ufacturing remains weak. 

 Washington personal income growth exceeds the nation. 

 Seattle inflation remains low thanks to falling energy costs. 

 Washington car and truck sales are the strongest since November 
2007 just prior to the onset of the Great Recession.  

Economic & Revenue Summary 
~WA State Economic & Revenue Forecast Council  

2015 3rd Quarter 

Sales tax is experiencing record gains which is offset by weaker than ex-
pected utility tax collections.  REET is above forecast due to unanticipat-
ed commercial sales while property tax collections remain solid. Ex-
penditures are tracking as expected. The local economy appears vibrant 
with new commercial construction outpacing 2014 by a wide margin.  
Single family home permits are increasing as plat approvals move for-
ward. Business licenses through Sept have exceeded all of 2014 by 7. 
City marketing has been effective for aquatics and athletics as participa-
tion has been  increasing.    

Property Tax 2 

Real Estate Excise Tax 2 

Retail Sales and Use Tax  3 

Utility Tax 3 

General Fund 4 

  

  

Inside this issue: 

20
15

 3
rd

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 

 

C
I

T
Y

 
O

F
 

C
O

V
I

N
G

T
O

N
 

September 30, 2015 

 

Public Works 5 

Development Services 5 

Parks and Recreation 5 

Cash and Investments 6 

Capital Investment Program 7 

  

  

 

- Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENT 1

112 of 129



 

 

Page 2 20 15 3R D QU AR TE R  

Property tax is collected 
by King County and dis-
tributed on a daily basis to 
all taxing agencies within 
the county. Since taxes 
are due on April 30 and 
October 30 each year, the major 
distributions are realized in early 
May and November.  

Through the 3rd quarter the City 
received $1,360,960 or 54.4% of 
budget. This is ahead of 2014 3rd 
quarter results by 3.0%.  

Property tax is the most stable 

source of revenue the City has. It is 
one leg of the “three legged” stool 
which the General Fund relies on for 
revenue. The other two legs are 
sales tax and utility tax.  

Property tax revenues are unre-
stricted. As such they may be used  
to pay for any need within the City. 

Currently, property taxes 
are allocated 100% to the 
General Fund.  

The 2014 levy for 2015 col-
lection is $2,479,823 and 
the levy rate is $1.31/$1,000 

assessed value. The legal cap for 
property tax collections is $2.10/
$1,000 assessed value.    

The City’s assessed valuation is 
$1.88 billion—an increase of $271.2 
million or 16.77% over the previous 
year.  

 

rate of one-half percent (two quar-
ter percents).  

Through September, collections are 
$490,716 or 140.0% of the $350,000 
budget.  This is $204,645 or 71.5% 
higher than 2014 primarily due to 
three commercial sales. 

REET is a restricted revenue dedi-
cated to paying debt service on the 
2007 transportation bonds which 
paid for 168th Place SE/165th Place 

SE and loans from the Public Works 
Trust Fund. This tax is levied by the 
City on all sales of real estate at the 

There were no new home sales, 319 
existing home sales (42% higher 
than 2014), and three commercial 
sales through 3rd quarter. 

Generally, existing home sales drive 
REET, but commercial sales add rev-
enue rapidly and in large amounts.  

Property Tax 

2013 2014 2015 

 $   1,222,026  $   1,320,979  $   1,360,960 

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) 

113 of 129



 

 

S E PT EM BE R 30,  201 5  

Sales and use Tax is the largest 
revenue source available to the 
City. It currently supports the 
General Fund at 84% and the 
Parks and Recreation Fund at 
16%.  The 3rd quarter (on a cash 

basis) is above 2014 levels by 
$339,860 or 13.7%.  Total collec-
tions are at $2,818,546 or 
83.1%. The budget for 2015 is 
$3,391,790. 

In year over year comparisons, 
retail sales increased by 8.9%, 
construction increased 98.3%, 
food services were up 9.0%, 
and all other categories in-
creased 12.2%.   

The City imposes a utility tax on electrical energy, nat-
ural gas, brokered natural gas, solid waste, cable tele-
vision, telephone, and SWM at the rate of 6.0%. 

The utility tax supports the general fund including 
debt service, streets, parks and parks CIP. 

The 3rd quarter Y/Y is down by $223,767 or 13.7%. Col-
lections are below budget. Part of this is PSE’s Sep-
tember payment came in October. Total collections 
are $1,411,492 or 66.7% of budget.  

Solid waste and SWM exceed the prior year but all 
other categories are down when com-
pared to 3rd quarter 2014. 

MuniServices is in the beginning stag-
es of a tax audit of PSE to insure com-
pliance with city  requirements.  

 

Page 3 

Retail Sales & Use Tax 

Utility Tax 

Utility 2014 2015 

 Electricity $534,151 $437,605 

 Natural Gas 285,887 246,257 

 Solid Waste 117,326 121,133 

 Cable 241,086 234,437 

 Telephone 393,714 302,832 

SWM 63,094 69,226 

Total $1,635,259 $1,411,492 

114 of 129



 

 

in spending of 13.4% or $761,293 
over the same period last year.  
This is in due mainly to an increase 
in operating transfers out.   

Overall, 61.7% of the budget has 
been spent. Note in the chart be-
low that most all departments are 
below the 75% mark. City council 
and legal are the exceptions due 
to front loaded expenses that will 
even out during the year.  

Revenues for the 3rd quarter are 
70.6% of budget or $6,691,523. 
This is more than 2014 levels by 
$451,013. Sales, utility, and proper-
ty tax collections are detailed on 
pages 2 and 3. Remaining reve-
nues outpaced 2014 by $384,083 
or 32.9%.    

Total expenditures including 
transfers out through September 
are $6,443,798. This is an increase 

Law Enforcement costs are on 
track for the year.  

Beginning fund balance is 
$4,482,656—an increase of 
$455,851.  

 

Page 4 20 15 3R D QU AR TE R  

GENERAL FUND  

GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENT BUDGET UPDATE 

          

Department YTD - 2014 % of Budget YTD - 2015 % of Budget 

 City Council $  414,913 85.2% $  428,435 88.3% 

 Municipal Court 282,095 44.2% 300,605 58.1% 

 Executive 744,145 78.5% 631,734 66.2% 

 Finance 395,384 71.4% 432,240 73.2% 

 Legal 69,280 75.0% 87,733 91.4% 

 Human Resources 248,134 68.9% 272,178 70.0% 

 Solid Waste 799 0.0% 588 0.0% 

 Central Services 385,919 72.7% 371,917 70.9% 

 Law Enforcement 2,192,710 67.5% 2,160,736 62.1% 

 Community Development 243,985 52.5% 295,646 72.1% 

 Operating Transfers Out 705,143 36.0% 1,461,986 48.7% 

TOTAL $   5,682,507 63.5% $   6,443,798 61.7% 

115 of 129



 

 

S E PT EM BE R 30,  201 5  Page 5 

Public Works consists of Street 
Operations and Surface Water 
Management (SWM).  

Street Operations is funded by 
franchise fees received from Com-
cast and a motor vehicle fuel ex-
cise tax—gas tax.  

Franchise fees are slightly ahead 
of 2014 by 3.7% or $6,522 and 
ahead of forecast at $181,724 or 
77.8%.  

Total operating revenues are 
$490,209 and other financing 
sources are $251,501. At $741,710 

this puts total revenue sources at 
68.4% for the 3rd quarter.  

Gas tax came in slightly above 
budget. The forecast is generated 
through Municipal Research Ser-
vices Corporation (MRSC). The 
amount received is $285,457 or  
77.7% of budget. This is slightly 
higher than 2014 by $10,966 or 
4.0%.   

Total expenditures are under 
budget for the 3rd quarter. Total 
expenditures are at 67.6% or 
$737,292.  

Street operating revenues are be-
low operating expenditures by 
$240,178. Operating transfers of 
$251,501 from the general fund 
offset that deficit.  

Ending fund balance for Streets is 
$514,491 an increase of $46,625.  

SWM is primarily funded through 
drainage fees that are collected 
by King County. The City received 
$1,068,103 or 57.2% of budget.  
Total revenues are at 51.3% or 
$1,113,929.  

Total expenditures are at 52.5% or 
$1,273,854 slightly below 2014. 

The number of permits for single 
family residences are at 10 com-
pared to 0 in 2014. There are 20 
multi-family permits and one com-
mercial permit year-to-date.  

Operational expenditures came in 

Total revenue is at $1,490,860 or 
118.8% of forecast.  This is a 190.5% 
increase over 2014. Permit reve-
nue is at $843,247 which is a 
524.1% increase over 2014 and is 
90.0% of budget.  

at 75.7% or $832,338.  

2015 is expected to have addition-
al development.  

Ending fund balance was 
$1,912,002 an increase of $20,773. 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

Parks is divided into five divisions: 
aquatics, maintenance, recrea-
tion, parks administration and ath-
letics. Revenues are derived from 
a portion of sales tax (16%), aquat-
ics revenue, recreation, athletics 
and some miscellaneous revenues 
such as rentals and interest earn-
ings.  

Operating revenue came in ahead  

of forecast at 91.0% or $1,243,252 
—led by sales tax and aquatics 
revenue. Sales tax is 83.1% or 
$450,967, aquatics revenue is 
$616,935 or 98.5%, athletics reve-
nue is $103,189 or 77.3% and recre-
ation revenue is $59,814 or 99.5%. 
All four categories exceed 2014 in 
year over year results.     

Year to date attendance is 

99,863—ahead of 2014 by 12,350. 

Operating expenditures for the 
five divisions are 79.2% or 
$2,041,696. Expenditures are ex-
ceeding operating revenues by  
$798,444.  

Ending fund balance was $214,256 
a decrease of $87,222.  

 

PARKS and RECREATION 

116 of 129



 

 

Page 6 20 15 3R D QU AR TE R  

Cash and investments total  
$14,818,565. This exceeds Septem-
ber 2014 by $2,177,872. The two 
largest gainers are the Capital In-
vestment Fund followed by the  
Development Services Fund. With 
the exception of the Street fund, 
all funds gained over 2014.    

The Local Government Invest-
ment Pool (LGIP) is currently earn-
ing 0.18% (as of September 2015). 
The City has $12,187,164 invested 
with the LGIP.  

Investments outside the LGIP to-
tal $2,414,395 (market value).  

That is split between US Govern-
ment Agencies  and Municipal Se-
curities. (six investments) 

The  weighted yield of the portfo-
lio with the state pool is 0.29% and 
without the pool is 0.81% (five 
times the pool earnings). Average 
days to maturity with the pool is 
94.62 days or 0.26 years and with-

out the pool is 570.37 days or 1.56 
years.  

There was one maturity during 
the quarter. 

Cash on hand is kept at US Bank  
and various petty cash funds 
throughout the City. Investment 
securities are kept with US Bank 
Safekeeping.   

The chart below reflects the 
amount of cash and investments 
allocated to each fund within the 
City. This is reconciled and updat-
ed on a monthly basis.  

Cash & Investments 

TOTAL GENERAL LEDGER CASH ACCOUNTS 

 

 

   
 INVESTMENTS CASH TOTAL 

 
GENERAL FUND      $451,747.68      $3,533,498.07      $3,985,245.75  

 STREET FUND                   -           393,498.96         393,498.96  

 CONTINGENCY FUND                   -           421,746.39         421,746.39  

 CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND   1,254,682.25         161,511.73      1,416,193.98  

 REET 3rd 1/4% FUND                   -           152,194.51         152,194.51  

 REET 3rd 1/4% FUND                   -           152,194.50         152,194.50  

 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND      507,032.24      2,059,014.92      2,566,047.16  

 PARKS and COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND                   -           182,323.57         182,323.57  

 LID 99-01 GUARANTY FUND                   -                        -                        -    

 LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE FUND                   -                        -                        -    

 LID 99.01 FUND                   -            34,349.63          34,349.63  

 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM                   -        2,677,840.11      2,677,840.11  

 SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT      200,933.00      1,946,799.11      2,147,732.11  

 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE                   -           266,943.90         266,943.90  

 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT                   -           422,254.74         422,254.74  

                    -                        -                        -    

  $ 2,414,395.17   $ 12,404,170.14    $ 14,818,565.31  TOTAL ALL FUNDS 

117 of 129



 

 

S E PT EM BE R 30,  201 5  Page 7 

Please see the chart below for current CIP 
activity.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Investment Program 

16720 SE 273rd St 

Suite 100 

Covington, WA 98042 

C I T Y  O F  C O V I N G T O N  
F I N A N C E  D E P A R T M E N T  

Phone: 253-480-2400 

Fax: 253-480-2401 

Rob Hendrickson - Finance Director 
Casey Parker - Senior Accountant 

Lindsay Hagen - Accountant I 
Staci Cles - Senior Accounting Clerk 
Viviana Salazar—Finance Assistant 

Project # Project Description Revenues  Expenditures 

1010 Covington Community Park Phase 2 $105,694 $8,544 

1014 Jenkins Creek Park 27,274 239,939 

1019 SoCo Park 862 862 

1029 Annual Traffic Safety 1,018  2,420 

1057 SR 516 Safety Widening 220 2,020 

1086 164th AV Se 0 732 

1127 SR 516 Widening at Jenkins Creek 854 42,985 

118 of 129



City of Covington

Quarterly Performance Report - General Fund

as of 9/30/2015
Total Revenue Bud v Act Total Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2
 

Chart 3

Total Exp Bud v Act Total Rev & Exp Bud v Act Cash & Investment Balance

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 4 Chart 5 Chart 6

 \

Percentages may not equal 100% due to rounding.

Chart 7 Chart 8 & 9

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV
EXP

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Prop Tax
20.3%

Sales Tax
35.4%Utility Tax

21.1%

Other Tax
5.7%

Licenses & 
Permits

1.0%

IntGov Rev
3.0%

Chgs for 
Goods & 

Svcs
11.6%

Fines
1.3%

Inv Int
0.1%

Misc
0.6%

Revenues by Category

Salaries
18.9% Benefits

7.0%

Supplies
0.9%

Chgs for Svcs
27.1%

IntGov Svcs
46.1%

Expenditures by Category

EXP

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

2014 2015

Year over Year Revenue Comparison
All other revenue

Charges for Goods & Services

Intergovernmental Revenues

Other Tax

Utility Tax

Sales Tax

Property Tax

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

Cash Investments

Rev & Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Property Tax 2,500.5$      1,361.0$     1,139.5$         54.4% 1,320.6$      

Sales Tax 2,849.1        2,367.6       481.5              83.1% 2,082.1        

Utility Tax 2,116.8        1,411.5       705.3              66.7% 1,635.3        

Other Tax 452.0           378.2          73.8                83.7% 341.1           

Licenses & Permits 75.0             64.0            11.0                85.3% 62.5             

Intergovernmental Rev 291.5           198.7          92.9                68.1% 207.2           

Charges for Goods & Svcs 1,008.0        773.4          234.6              76.7% 436.6           

Fines & Penalties 94.7             87.4            7.3                  92.3% 75.9             

Investment Interest 12.0             9.7              2.3                  81.1% 5.9               

Miscellaneous 44.4             40.0            4.3                  90.3% 38.1             

Total Operating Revenues 9,444.0        6,691.5       2,752.5           70.9% 6,205.3        

Other Financing Sources 35.2             -              35.2                0.0% 35.2             

Total Sources 9,479.2$      6,691.5$     2,787.6$         70.6% 6,240.5$      

Salaries & Wages 1,444.3$      1,013.5$     430.8$            70.2% 1,025.1$      

Benefits 525.9           377.7          148.2              71.8% 375.4           

Supplies 68.5             48.3            20.1                70.6% 45.7             

Charges for Services 1,872.1        1,453.2       418.9              77.6% 1,408.6        

Intergovernmental Svcs 4,027.6        2,478.9       1,548.7           61.5% 2,470.4        

Capital 5.1               -              5.1                  0.0% 16.1             

Total Operating Expenses 7,943.4        5,371.6       2,571.8           67.6% 5,341.2        

Other Financing Uses 2,501.5        1,072.2       1,429.2           42.9% 341.3           

Total Uses 10,444.9$    6,443.8$     4,001.1$         61.7% 5,682.5$      

Cur Year Budget Actual Data in Thousands of $

Legend

R:\rhendrickson\Public\2014 Budget Monitoring\2014 GF Quarterly Charts.xlsmReportA 11/4/2015

ATTACHMENT 2

119 of 129



City of Covington

Quarterly Performance Report - Street Operations

as of 9/30/2015

Budget Rev v Act Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2 Chart 3

Budget Exp v Act YTD Budget v Actual Rev & Exp Cash Balance

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Less: Operating Transfers and Other 

Financing Uses

Chart 4 Chart 5 Chart 6

Percentages may not equal 100% due to rounding.

Chart 7 Chart 8 & 9

0

50

100

150

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

50

100

150

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV EXP

0

50

100

150

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV

EXP

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Franchise
24.5%

IntGov Rev
38.5%

Chgs for 
Goods & 

Svcs
3.1%

Inv Int
0.05%

Other Fin 
Sources
33.9%

Revenues by Category

Salaries
31.7%

Benefits
12.7%Supplies

2.9%

Chgs for Svcs
42.9%

IntGov Svcs
9.0%

Other Fin 
Uses
0.9%

Expenditures by Category

0

200

400

600

2014 2015

Year over Year Revenue Comparison
Misc

Investment Interest

Charges for Goods & Svcs

Intergovernmental
Revenues
Cable TV Franchise

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

Rev & Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Cull 2014

Budget Actual Actual

Cable TV Franchise 233.5$         181.7$     51.8$        77.8% 175.2$      

Intergovernmental Revenues 367.3           285.5       81.8          77.7% 274.5        

Charges for Goods & Svcs 6.0               22.6         (16.6)         377.2% 58.3          

Investment Interest 0.4               0.4           0.0            99.2% 0.3            

Miscellaneous -               -           -            0.0% 0.0            

Total Operating Revenues 607.2           490.2       116.9        80.7% 508.2        

Operating Transfer In 476.6           251.5       225.1        52.8% 197.6        

Total Sources 1,083.8$      741.7$     342.1$      68.4% 705.9$      

Salaries & Wages 353.7$         233.4$     120.3$      66.0% 245.2$      

Benefits 135.1           93.8         41.2          69.5% 93.5          

Supplies 65.9             21.3         44.7          32.2% 26.7          

Charges for Services 437.6           315.9       121.7        72.2% 194.2        

Intergovernmental 98.0             66.0         32.0          67.4% 53.9          

Capital -               -           -            0.0% 12.7          

Total Operating Expenses 1,090.3        730.4       359.9        67.0% 626.2        

Other Financing Uses -               6.9           (6.9)           0.0% 14.4          

Total Uses 1,090.3$      737.3$     353.0$      67.6% 640.6$      

Cur Year Budget Actual Data in Thousands of $

Legend

R:\rhendrickson\Public\2013 Budget Monitoring\2013 Street Quarterly Charts.xlsmReport 11/4/2015120 of 129



City of Covington

Quarterly Performance Report - Development Services

as of 9/30/2015

Bud v Act Revenue Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2 Chart 3

Bud v Act Expenditures Budget v Actual Rev & Exp Cash & Investment Balance

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 4 Chart 5 Chart 6

# of SFR Permits - YTD SFR Cumulative Permit Activity    SFR Permit Valuation - YTD

Bud v Act Expenditures
Thousands of $

Chart 7 Chart 8                  Chart 9

  

Chart 11

Percentages may not equal 100% due to rounding. 

0

70

140

210

280

350

420

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

70

140

210

280

350

420

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV

0

70

140

210

280

350

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV

EXP

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

Licenses
4.8%

Permits
56.6%

Chgs for 
Goods & 

Svcs
37.9%

Inv Int
0.7%

Revenues by Category

Salaries
45.1%

Benefits
15.5%

Supplies
0.8%

Chgs for Svcs
34.4%

IntGov Svcs
4.3%

Expenditures by Category

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

2014 2015

Year over Year Revenue Comparison
Operating Transfer In

Misc

Inv Int

Chgs for Goods & Svcs

IntGov Rev

Permits

Licenses

0

50

100

150

200

250

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2

10

0

5

10

15

2014 2015

0

5

10

15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 101112

2014 2015

0

0.5

1

1.5

2010 2011

$3,691

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

2014 2015

EXP

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

Cash Investments

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Licenses 80.3$           71.4$           8.9               88.9% 73.1$           

Permits 936.9           843.2           93.7             90.0% 160.9           

Intergovernmental Svcs 4.6               -               4.6               0.0% 0.1               

Charges for Services 229.3           565.5           (336.2)          246.6% 546.6           

Interest Income 4.0               10.7             (6.7)              268.3% 2.0               

Miscellaneous -               -               -               0.0% 0.0               

Total Operating Revenues 1,255.2        1,490.9        (235.7)          118.8% 782.8           

Operating Transfer In -               -               -               0.0% -               

Total Sources 1,255.2$      1,490.9$      (235.7)$        118.8% 782.8$         

Salaries & Wages 494.4$         375.1           119.3           75.9% 353.9           

Benefits 174.1           128.8           45.3             74.0% 122.6           

Supplies 9.7               6.4               3.3               65.6% 3.3               

Charges for Services 361.8           286.2           75.6             79.1% 256.1           

Intergovernmental 59.6             36.0             23.7             60.3% 7.8               

Total Operating Expenses 1,099.5        832.3           267.2           75.7% 743.7           

Other Financing Uses -               -               -               0.0% -               

Total Uses 1,099.5$      832.3$         267.2$         75.7% 743.7$         

R:\rhendrickson\Public\2013 Budget Monitoring\2013 DS Quarterly Charts.xlsmReport 11/4/2015121 of 129



City of Covington

Quarterly Performance Report - Parks and Recreation Services

as of 9/30/2015

SUMMARY CHARTS DEPARTMENTS

 
 

Total Budget Rev v Act Total Rev v Exp Bud v Act Exp - Parks

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1
 

Chart 2

Total Budget Exp v Act Total Bud v Act Rev & Exp Bud v Act Exp - Aquatics

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4

Year over Year Revenue Aquatics Rev Comparison Bud v Act Exp - Recreation

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 5 Chart 6

 Bud v Act Exp - Parks Mtce

Thousands of $

Bud v Act Exp - Athletics
 

Thousands of $

Percentages may not equal 100% due to rounding. 
Chart 10

Chart 9

Chart 11

Chart 12

Chart 8

-40

50

140

230

320

410

500

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

90

180

270

360

450

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

90

180

270

360

450

9
14

101112
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV EXP

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

4
15

5 6 7 8 9
15

0

50

100

150

4
15

5 6 7 8 9
15

0

20

40

60

80

100

4
15

5 6 7 8 9
15

Taxes
21.4%

Grants/Intergo
v Rev
0.1%

Aquatics 
Revenue

29.3%

Athletics 
Revenue

4.9%

Recreation 
Revenue

2.8%

Misc
0.4%

Other Fin 
Sources
40.9%

Revenues by Category

Salaries
42.5%

Benefits
12.0%

Supplies
6.4%

Chgs for Svcs
38.2%

Other
0.7%

Expenditures by Category

0

20

40

60

80

100

4
15

5 6 7 8 9
15

0

250

500

750

1,000

1,250

1,500

2014 2015

Misc

Chgs for
G&S
Athletics Rev

Recreation
Rev
Aquatics Rev

Taxes
0

500

1,000

2014 2015

REV
EXP

Rev & Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Taxes 542.7$            451.0$         91.7$              83.1% 396.6$         

Grants/Intergovernmental Rev -                  2.3               (2.3)                 0.0% -               

Aquatics Revenue 626.4              616.9           9.5                  98.5% 517.0           

Athletics Revenue 133.5              103.2           30.3                77.3% 38.1             

Recreation Revenue 60.1                59.8             0.3                  99.5% 36.1             

Investment Interest 0.2                  0.6               (0.4)                 285.5% 0.1               

Charges for Goods & Services -                  -               -                  0.0% -               

Miscellaneous 3.6                  9.4               (5.8)                 262.8% 31.6             

Total Operating Revenues 1,366.5           1,243.3        123.3              91.0% 1,019.5        

Other Financing Sources 1,274.3           861.3           413.0              67.6% 300.1           

Total Sources 2,640.9$         2,104.6$      536.3$            79.7% 1,319.6$      

Salaries & Wages 1,051.1$         849.3$         201.8$            80.8% 675.2$         

Benefits 312.4              239.7           72.6                76.7% 194.7           

Supplies 143.0              128.6           14.4                90.0% 57.7             

Intergovernmental Svcs 12.0                2.7               9.2                  22.7% 5.3               

Charges for Services 1,061.1           763.0           298.1              71.9% 452.2           

Capital Outlay -                  58.3             (58.3)               0.0% 70.1             

Total Operating Expenses 2,579.5           2,041.7        537.8              79.2% 1,455.2        

Other Financing Uses 27.5                13.7             13.7                50.0% 13.7             

Total Uses 2,607.0$         2,055.4$      551.5$            78.8% 1,468.9$      

Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 218.4$            206.4$         12.0$              94.5% 144.3$         

Benefits 63.2                52.0             11.2                82.3% 34.1             

Supplies 1.5                  1.0               0.4                  71.3% 0.1               

Charges for Services 163.6              140.0           23.6                85.6% 77.5             

Intergovernmental Svcs 1.0                  -               1.0                  0.0% (0.1)              

Total Operating Expenses 447.6              399.4           48.2                89.2% 256.0           

Other Financing Uses -                  -               -                  0.0% -               

Total Uses 447.6$            399.4$         48.2$              89.2% 256.0$         

Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 502.7$            397.0$         105.7$            79.0% 349.5$         

Benefits 139.2              106.6           32.5                76.6% 98.8             

Supplies 66.3                34.6             31.7                52.2% 19.9             

Charges for Services 400.2              293.2           106.9              73.3% 202.5           

Intergovernmental Svcs -                  -               -                  0.0% -               

Capital Outlay -                  0.6               (0.6)                 0.0% 27.8             

Total Operating Expenses 1,108.4           832.1           276.3              75.1% 698.4           

Other Financing Uses 27.5                13.7             13.7                50.0% 13.7             

Total Uses 1,135.9$         845.8$         290.1$            74.5% 712.2$         

Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 96.5$              87.0$           9.5$                90.2% 72.3$           

Benefits 38.9                31.0             7.9                  79.8% 28.2             

Supplies 22.8                16.5             6.3                  72.3% 10.9             

Charges for Services 292.6              127.0           165.6              43.4% 99.3             

Capital Outlay -                  57.7             (57.7)               0.0% -               

Total Operating Expenses 450.8              319.3           131.6              70.8% 210.7           

Other Financing Uses -                  -               -                  0.0% -               

Total Uses 450.8$            319.3$         131.6$            70.8% 210.7$         

Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 117.9$            86.2$           31.6$              73.2% 77.7$           

Benefits 34.6                24.4             10.2                70.5% 22.4             

Supplies 9.4                  36.0             (26.6)               383.3% 6.1               

Charges for Services 149.1              146.5           3                     98.2% 67.4             

Capital -               -                  0.0% 18.4             

Intergovernmental Svcs 11.0                2.7               8.3                  24.7% 5.4               

Total Operating Expenses 322.0              295.8           26.2                91.9% 197.4           

Other Financing Uses -                  -               -                  0.0% -               

Total Uses 322.0$            295.8$         26.2$              91.9% 197.4$         

Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 115.6$            72.6$           42.9$              62.9% 31.4$           

Benefits 36.5                25.7             10.8                70.5% 11.2             

Supplies 43.0                40.5             2.5                  94.2% 20.6             

Charges for Services 55.6                56.3             (0.7)                 101.2% 5.4               

Intergovernmental Svcs -                  -               

Capital Outlay -                  -               -                  0.0% 23.9             

Total Uses 250.66$          195.14$       55.5                77.9% 92.61$         

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

4
15

5 6 7 8 9
15

Cur Year Budget Actual Data in Thousands of $

Legend

 -  500  1,000  1,500  2,000  2,500

Athletics

Recreation

Athletics/Recreation Participation

2015 2014

 -  5,000  10,000  15,000  20,000  25,000

Recreation Swims

Aquatic Activities

Private Rentals

Aquatics Activity Y/Y 3rd Quarter

2015 2014

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2015 Blue Sheets\11-10-15\2013 Parks Quarterly Charts.xlsmReport 11/5/2015

122 of 129



City of Covington

Quarterly Performance Report - SWM Operations

as of 9/30/2015

Budget Rev v Act Rev v Exp Year over Year Drainage Fee Collections

Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2 Chart 5

Budget Exp v Act Budget v Actual Rev & Exp Cash & Investment Balance

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4 Chart 6
Capital Outlay SWM Customer Base

 

Thousands of $

Percentages may not equal 100% due to rounding. 

Charts 10 & 11

Chart 7

Chart 9

Chart 8

0

500

1,000

1,500

2014 2015

0

500

1,000

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

250

500

750

1,000

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

EXP

0

250

500

750

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

REV EXP

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

Grants
1.0%

Intergov 
Revenues

2.8%

Drainage 
Utility
95.9%

Inv Int
0.3%

Revenues by Category

Salaries
30.0%

Benefits
12.9%Supplies

1.2%

Chgs for 
Svcs

46.7%

Intgov Svcs
3.1%

Cap Outlay
3.7%

SWM Debt Svc 
P & I
2.4%

Expenditures by Category

REV

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

9
14

10 11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

0

10

20

30

10
14

11 12
14

1
15

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
15

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2015 2015 $ Rem % Coll 2014

Budget Actual YTD Actual

Grants 247.2$         12$              235.7           4.7% 49.5$           

Intergovernmental Revenues 51.8             30.9             20.9             59.6% 23.1             

Drainage Utility 1,866.8        1,068.1        798.7           57.2% 939.3           

Investment Interest 5.0               3.4               1.6               68.2% 2.4               

Misc -               -               -               0.0% (0.3)              

King County Flood Control 71.2             -               71.2             0.0% -               

KC Flood Reduction Grant 176.0           -               176.0           0.0% -               

Total Operating Revenues 2,170.8        1,113.9        1,056.9        51.3% 1,014.1        

Transfers In -               -               -               -               

Total Sources 2,170.8$      1,113.9$      1,056.9$      51.3% 1,014.1$      

Salaries 594.5$         382.3$         212.2$         64.3% 354.1$         

Benefits 238.6           163.7           74.9             68.6% 153.8           

Supplies 39.1             15.5             23.7             39.5% 26.7             

Charges for Services 1,140.3        594.8           545.5           52.2% 557.9           

Intergovernmental 61.9             39.8             22.2             64.2% 40.8             

Capital Outlay 318.8           46.5             272.3           148.3           

Total Operating Expenditures 2,393.3        1,242.7        1,150.7        51.9% 1,281.6        

Other Financing Uses -               -               -               0.0% -               
SWM Debt Service P & I 32.8             31.2             1.6               95.0% 30.4             

Total Uses 2,426.2$      1,273.9$      1,152.3$      52.5% 1,312.1$      

6,225 , 96.3%

242 , 3.7%

SWM Customer Base

Residential Commercial

R:\rhendrickson\Public\2013 Budget Monitoring\2013 SWM Quarterly Charts.xlsmReport 11/4/2015
123 of 129



CITY OF COVINGTON

MAJOR REVENUE REVIEW

2012 - Current

Source/Data High/Low

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 2,478,606            2,818,546            13.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 3,391,790$          2,818,546            83.1%

2014 Annual Revenues 3,507,000$          3,307,265            94.3%

2013 Annual Revenues 2,988,000$          3,179,326$          106.4%
 

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 1,320,579$          1,360,960$          3.1%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 2,500,470$          1,360,960$          54.4%

2014 Annual Revenues 2,427,134$          2,458,371$          101.3%

2013 Annual Revenues 2,340,000$          2,363,948$          101.0%
 

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 1,635,259$          1,411,492$          -13.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 2,116,790$          1,411,492$          66.7%

2014 Annual Revenues 2,080,100$          2,052,234$          98.7%

2013 Annual Revenues 2,140,140$          2,004,827$          93.7%

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 274,491$             285,457$             4.0%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 367,250$             285,457$             77.7%

2014 Annual Revenues 369,240$             233,493$             63.2%

2013 Annual Revenues 366,566$             360,567$             98.4%
 

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 175,202$             181,724$             3.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 233,500$             181,724$             77.8%

2014 Annual Revenues 220,000$             259,889$             118.1%

2013 Annual Revenues 199,000$             200,952$             101.0%

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 160,888$             843,247$             424.1%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 936,930$             843,247$             90.0%

2014 Annual Revenues 713,823$             487,938$             68.4%

2013 Annual Revenues 566,835$             845,807$             149.2%

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 517,039$             616,935$             19.3%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 626,420$             616,935$             98.5%

2014 Annual Revenues 673,081$             663,902$             98.6%

2013 Annual Revenues 512,820$             656,651$             128.0%

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 939,286$             1,068,103$          13.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 1,866,830$          1,068,103$          57.2%

2014 Annual Revenues 1,754,862$          1,807,521$          103.0%

2013 Annual Revenues 1,733,000$          1,751,467$          101.1%

3Q-14 3Q-15 % Diff

Qtr - Qtr Revenues 159,723$             490,717$             207.2%

Budget Actual % Collected 

2015 Annual Revenues 350,000$             490,717$             140.2%

2014 Annual Revenues 480,000$             414,489$             86.4%

2013 Annual Revenues 350,000$             562,456$             160.7%
 

P
A

R
K

S 
FU

N
D

Budget vs Actual

Utility Tax

Revenue by Month (shown on a cash basis)

Sales Tax

Property Tax

ST
R

EE
T 

FU
N

D
G

EN
ER

A
L 

FU
N

D

Fuel Tax

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)/Avg Sales Price/Unit

Development Services Permitting Revenue/Activity

SWM Fees

Aquatics Revenue/Attendance

Comcast Franchise Fees

D
EV

 S
V

C
S 

FU
N

D
SW

M
 F

U
N

D
R

EE
T 

FU
N

D

 150

 225

 300

 375

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

 -
 175
 350
 525
 700
 875

 1,050

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

 -
 0.1
 0.2
 0.3
 0.4
 0.5
 0.6

 -
 20
 40
 60
 80

 100
 120

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 U

n
it
 S

a
le

 
P

ri
c
e
 (

m
ill

io
n
s
)

▲Thousand $

 -

 125

 250

 375

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

0
6
12
18
24
30
36

 -
 60

 120
 180
 240
 300
 360

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

P
e
rm

it
s

▲Thousand $

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

13 14 15

Budget

Actual

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

13 14 15

Budget

Actual

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 200

 400

 600

13 14 15

Budget Actual
▲Thousand $

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

13 14 15
▲Thousand $

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 25

 50

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 -
 25
 50
 75

 100
 125

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (

0
0
0
s
)

▲Thousand $

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

13 14 15

▲Thousand $

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

Q3 Jan
13

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan
15

Q1 Q2 Q3

▲Thousand $

 -

 100

 200

 300

13 14 15
▲Thousand $

184 

7 

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

2/1/2007 10/1/2010

▲Thousand $

627 

-

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

10/1/2014 8/1/2009

▲Thousand $

90 

8 

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

 100

7/1/2014 1/1/2008

▲Thousand $

238 

5 

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

2/1/2015 2/1/2012

▲Thousand $

61 

47 

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

4/1/2015 10/1/2011

▲Thousand $

63 

26 

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

10/1/2009 1/1/2012

▲Thousand $

399 

6 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

12/1/2008 3/1/2008

▲Thousand $

955 

4 

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

10/1/2014 Jul-2011
▲Thousand $

368 

124 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

2/1/2015 4/1/2006

▲Thousand $

R:\rhendrickson\Public\2015 Budget Monitoring\Major Revenue Comparison 2015.xlsmECONIND 11/4/2015

ATTACHMENT 3

124 of 129



City of Covington
Investment Listing

for the period ending September 30, 2015

Institution Par/Shares Maturity Date
Current 

Date DTM YTM

Current 
Principal 
Balance

Current Market 
Value

US Bank - Cash 125,299.73$       overnight 125,299.73$       

Forfeiture Account 91,706.55           overnight 91,706.55           

Local Government Investment Pool 12,187,163.86    overnight 0.00        12,187,163.86    

US Government Agencies

FMAC 1,000,000.00$    2/22/17 9/30/2015 512 0.64        1,006,873.00$  1,004,665.00$    

FMAC 200,000.00         2/22/17 9/30/2015 512 0.80        200,427.00       200,933.00         

Federal Farm Credit Bank 250,000.00         5/1/17 9/30/2015 580 0.82        249,239.25       250,017.25         

FICO Strip Prin 517,000.00         11/30/17 9/30/2015 793 1.16        499,672.75       507,032.24         

FICO Strip PRN10 357,000.00         11/30/17 9/30/2015 793 0.91        349,516.21       350,131.68         

subtotal 2,324,000.00      2,305,728.21    2,312,779.17      

Municipal Securities

Central Puget Sound WA 100,000.00         2/1/2016 9/30/2015 125 0.45        107,783.00       101,616.00         

subtotal 100,000.00         107,783.00       101,616.00         

2,424,000.00      2,413,511.21    2,414,395.17      

14,828,170.14$  2,413,511.21$  14,818,565.31$  

ATTACHMENT 4

125 of 129



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  November 10, 2015 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, November 24, 2015 
 Special Meeting – Study Session 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, November 24, 2015 

 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

126 of 129



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, November 24, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

ITEM FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Comprehensive Plan (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 

not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

 
*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 11/05/15 

 

127 of 129

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, November 24, 2015                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

C-1. Minutes:  October 31, 2015 Budget Workshop and November 10, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  

C-3. Approve 2016 Tri-City Interlocal Agreement for Building Administration Services (Lyons/Meyers) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

 Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  Oct. 8 meeting; Nov. 12 meeting canceled due to SOTC. 

 Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  November 18 meeting. 

 Planning Chair Bill Judd:  November 5 and November 19 meetings. 

 Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  November 19 special meeting; Nov. 12 meeting canceled due to SOTC. 

 PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  October 28 meeting. 
 

 Future Meetings:  Economic Development Council next meeting:  December 3; November 26 
canceled (holiday)  

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Budget and; 

1a. Consider Ordinance Setting the 2015 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2016 
1b. Consider Ordinance Authorizing a Property Tax Increase 
1c. Consider Resolution Making a Declaration of Substantial Need for Purposes of Setting the Limit 

Factor for the Property Tax Levy for 2015 (Parker/Hendrickson) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
4. Consider Ordinance Establishing City Hall Hours of Operating (Scott) 
5. Discuss Policy Priorities Regarding Permanent Marijuana Regulations (Hart) 

Draft 
as of 11/05/15 

 

128 of 129

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 

 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

129 of 129


	11-10-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent C-1 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 10.13.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 10.27.2015 Special Joint Mtg w-Arts Commission
	Consent C-1 Attachment 3 10.27.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 11-10-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet Blue Sheet - RCO Contract for SoCo Acquisition
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 14-1623 SoCo Park RCO Agreement
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 11-10-15 Blue Sheet for Public Hearing
	Item 2 Blue Sheet - PROS Plan Update Presentation
	Item 3 2016 Blue Sheet for Fee Resolution Update final kjt
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Res  15-___ 2016  Fees Resolution
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Part 1 2016 Fee Resolution 11-10-15
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Part 2 2016 Fee Resolution 11-10-15
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 11-10-15 blue sheet for vehicle license fee
	Item 4 Attachment 1 ORD_Authorizing Car Tab Fee_10NOV2015 (002)
	Item 5 Blue Sheet 11-10-15 Blue Sheet for Utility Tax Ordinance
	Item 5 Attachment 1 ORD_Utility Tax Increase_10NOV2015_v2
	Item 6 Blue Sheet 2016 Legislative Agenda
	Item 6 Attachments 1 and 2 2016 Legislative Agenda Attachments
	Item 7 Blue Sheet 11-10-15 Blue Sheet for 3rd Qtr Financial Reports
	Item 7 Attachment 1 2015 Third Qtr Report
	Item 7 Attachment 2 2014 GF Quarterly Charts
	Item 7 Attachment 2 Page 2 2013 Street Quarterly Charts
	Item 7 Attachment 2 Page 3 2013 DS Quarterly Charts
	Item 7 Attachment 2 Page 4 2013 Parks Quarterly Charts
	Item 7 Attachment 2 Page 5 2013 SWM Quarterly Charts
	Item 7 Attachment 3 Major Revenue Comparison 3rd Qtr 2015
	Item 7 Attachment 4 2015 3rd Qtr Inv Report
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	11-24-2015 Special Study Session Agenda
	11-24-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda



